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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR #(OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Quarter Ended February 24, 2013 or

[ 1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 AF$(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition period from to

Commission file number:0-27446

LANDEC CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Delaware 94-302561¢8
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employel
incorporation or organizatiot Identification Number

3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, California 94025
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(650) 306-1650

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by Sewcti® or 15(d) of the Securiti
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofdhgor such shorter period that the registrans weqjuired to file such report
and (2) has been subject to such filing requiremétat least the past 90 days.

Yes _X No ___
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atbsite, if any, every Interac
Data File required to be submitted and posted @untsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the pdéng 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was requiresutamit and post such files).

Yes _X No ___
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer or a smal
reporting company. See definition of “large accatied filer” and “accelerated filer” and “smallaporting company” in Rule 12b-
of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer __ Accelerated Filer X_
Non Accelerated Filer __ Smaller Reporting Company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act).
Yes___ No_ X

As of March 22, 2013, there were 25,929,412 shafr€ommon Stock outstanding.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

February 24, May 27,
2013 2012
(Unaudited) 1)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,94 $ 22,17
Marketable securities 3,79( —
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfgloants of $798 and $512 at February 24,

2013 and May 27, 2012, respectively 37,26 31,95
Accounts receivable, related party 31z 328
Income taxes receivable — 47
Inventories 22,38¢ 22,01
Deferred taxes 2,092 2,07¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6,19¢ 2,57¢

Total Current Assets 81,981 81,16:
Investment in non-public company, non-fair value 798 798
Investment in non-public company, fair value 27,80( 21,50(
Property and equipment, net 63,05¢ 63,49t
Goodwill, net 49,62( 49,62(
Trademarks/tradenames, net 48,42¢ 48,42¢
Customer relationships, net 9,82 10,557
Other assets 1,484 2,13¢
Total Assets $ 282,99 $ 277,69.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 27,740 $ 22,64+
Related party accounts payable 191 77€
Accrued compensation 5,91z 5,782
Other accrued liabilities 2,452 18,64:
Deferred revenue 931 162
Lines of credit 4,00( 11,66¢
Current portion of long-term debt 7,047 7,012
Total Current Liabilities 48,27 66,68/
Long-term debt, less current portion 35,79 40,30¢
Deferred taxes 22,28: 18,03
Other non-current liabilities 1,96¢ 1,10¢
Total Liabilities 108,31¢ 126,13:
Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 sharttmazed; 25,906,412 and 25,644,58C
shares issued and outstanding at February 24, &td 8ay 27, 2012, respectively 26 26
Additional paid-in capital 125,10¢ 119,89:
Retained earnings 47,89( 29,82
Total Stockholders’ Equity 173,02 149,74
Non controlling interest 1,65¢ 1,81¢
Total Equity 174,67¢ 151,55¢
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 282,99 $ 277,69:

(1) Derived from audited financial statements.



See accompanying notes.
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Revenues:

Product sales

Services revenue, related party
Total revenues

Cost of revenue:
Cost of product sales
Cost of services revenue

Total cost of revenue
Gross profit

Operating costs and expenses:

Research and development

Selling, general and administrative

Change in value of contingent consideration
Total operating costs and expenses
Operating income

Dividend income
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income

Net income before taxe
Income tax expense
Consolidated net income
Non controlling interes

Net income applicable to Common Stockholc

Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share

Shares used in per share computation
Basic

Diluted

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Interest rate swap

Income tax expense

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Comprehensive income attributable to Common Stddens

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

February 24, February 26, February 24, February 26,
2013 2012 2013 2012

$ 117,58: $ 79,51¢ $ 332,97 % 232,60t

28¢ 54E 1,61¢ 2,33(

117,86° 80,06¢ 334,59 234,93t

100,09( 66,43: 283,46: 195,59¢

26¢ 46C 1,40/ 1,907

100,35¢ 66,89: 284,86! 197,50:

17,50¢ 13,17: 49,73( 37,43

2,32t 2,47: 6,642 7,14z

8,524 6,664 26,26¢ 19,17:

— — (3,939 —

10,84¢ 9,137 28,97¢ 26,31«

6,65¢ 4,03t 20,75t 11,11¢

281 281 844 844

46 63 104 21¢

(487) (159 (1,526 (492)

1,047 3,50¢ 6,28¢ 4,59¢

7,54¢ 7,73¢ 26,46¢ 16,28

(2,759 (2,920) (8,23f) (6,079

4,792 4,81« 18,22% 10,20¢

(3) (49) (15€) (28¢)

$ 4,78¢ $ 4,765 $ 18,06¢ $ 9,91

$ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.7 $ 0.3¢

$ 0.1t $ 0.1t $ 0.6¢ $ 0.3¢

25,83¢ 25,53¢ 25,75: 25,94«

26,667 25,82¢ 26,49: 26,20t

— 53 — 10C

— (20) — (35)

— 33 — 65

$ 4,78¢ $ 4,79¢ $ 18,06¢ $ 9,98

See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigem by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense

Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Deferred taxes
Earn out liability

(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Change in investment in non-public company (fairkeavalue)

Changes in current assets and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable, related party
Income taxes receivable
Inventories
Issuance of notes and advances receivable
Collection of notes and advances receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Related party accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment

Purchase of marketable securities

Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repurchase of outstanding common stock
Proceeds from sale of common stock

Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and RSUs
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense
Earn out payment from Lifecore acquisition
Principal payments on long-term debt

Payments on lines of credit

Decrease (Increase) in other assets

Payments to minority interest holders

Net cash used in financing activiti

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental schedule of noncash operating aetviti
Change in value of contingent consideration
Unrealized gain from interest rate swap

Nine Months Ended

February 24, February 26,
2013 2012

$ 18,227 $ 10,20¢
5,527 4,111

1,13t 1,314

(2,749 (5,51

18C —

4,23( 157

(3,939 —

(6,300 (4,726

(5,316 (1,718

11 75

2,79( 5,87(

(379 22¢

(4,177 (3,699

3,58¢ 3,19¢

(3,035 3,577

5,09¢ (2,295

(58%) (83

131 837

(2,564 (697)

1,58 (2,317

13,47¢ 8,563¢

(4,53¢) (3,897

(5,239 (25,679

1,44¢ 19,58:

— 9,12¢

(8,32¢) (862)

— (5,007%

1,38t 91

(49 (39)

2,74 5,511

(9,650 —
(4,476 (3,330

(7,66¢€) —
652 (249
(320) (257)
(17,38)) (3,274
(12,239 4,39¢

22,171 8,13¢

$ 9,94 $ 12,53¢
$ 393 $ —
$ — $ 65



See accompanying notes
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentatiomd Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aitpolymer products for
food and agricultural products, medical devices lax@hsed partner applications that incorporatedears patented polymer
technologies. The Company has two proprietaryrpelytechnology platforms: 1) Intelimer® polymeasd 2) hyaluronan (“HA")
biopolymers. The Company’s HA biopolymers are pietpry in that they are specially formulated fpesific customers to meet strict
regulatory requirements. The Company’s polymernetibgies, along with its customer relationships aade names, are the foundation, and
a key differentiating advantage upon which Landag built its business. The Company sells speqgutkaged fresh-cut vegetables and
whole produce to retailers and club stores, pripamithe United States, Asia and Canada, throtgjApio, Inc. (“Apio”) subsidiary, HA-
based biomaterials through its Lifecore Biomeditad, (“Lifecore”) subsidiary.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finant@éments of Landec have been prepared in accardeitit accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stéde#nterim financial information and with the imgttions for Form 10-Q and Article 10 of
Regulation S-X. In the opinion of managementadjustments (consisting of normal recurring ac&llahve been made which are necessary
to present fairly the financial position at Febguad, 2013 and the results of operations and daslsffor all periods presented. Although
Landec believes that the disclosures in these ¢iahrtatements are adequate to make the informptiesented not misleading, certain
information normally included in financial statenteand related footnotes prepared in accordand¢eagitounting principles generally
accepted in the United States have been condenseditbed in accordance with the rules and regoitetiof the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The accompanying financial data shbaldeviewed in conjunction with the audited finahstatements and accompanying
notes included in Landec's Annual Report on ForaKX0r the fiscal year ended May 27, 2012.

The results of operations for the nine months ertddatuary 24, 2013 are not necessarily indicatitb@results that may be
expected for an entire fiscal year because theserre seasonality in Apio’s food business, paridy) Apio’s Food Export business and the
order patterns of Lifecore’s customers which magleo significant fluctuations in Landec’s quanendsults of operations.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presemtéle accrual basis of accounting in accordaritte WS. generally accepted
accounting principles and include the accountsasfdec and its subsidiaries, Apio and Lifecore. mditerial inter-company transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

Arrangements that are not controlled through votingimilar rights are reviewed under the guidaiocesariable interest entities
(“VIES"). A company is required to consolidate the assetbiliiies and operations of a VIE if it is determthto be the primary beneficiary
the VIE.

An entity is a VIE and subject to consolidationbyf design: a) the total equity investment at itskot sufficient to permit the entity
to finance its activities without additional subwrated financial support provided by any partiesjuding equity holders or b) as a group the
holders of the equity investment at risk lack ang of the following three characteristics: (i) ffmver, through voting rights or similar rights
to direct the activities of an entity that mostrsfigantly impact the entity’s economic performan(é the obligation to absorb the expected
losses of the entity, or (iii) the right to recette expected residual returns of the entity. Then@any reviewed the consolidation guidance
and concluded that the non-public companies in lwthe Company holds equity investments are not VIES
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to
make certain estimates and judgments that affecatmounts reported in the financial statementsaaodmpanying notes. The accounting
estimates that require management’s most signifi@ad subjective judgments include revenue recmgnisales returns and allowances;
recognition and measurement of current and defénmine tax assets and liabilities; the assessofestoverability of long-lived assets; the
valuation of intangible assets and inventory; thiation of investments; and the valuation andgeitmn of stock-based compensation.

These estimates involve the consideration of coxnjaletors and require management to make judgmériis.analysis of historical
and future trends can require extended periodsnef to resolve and is subject to change from pegeeriod. The actual results may differ
from management’s estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshithree months or less from date of purchase tonibgas cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents consist mainly dffmate of deposits (CDs), money market funds Bh8. Treasuries. The market value of
cash equivalents approximates their historical gos&n their short-term nature.

Marketable Securities

Shortterm marketable securities consist of CDs thaF&EC insured and single A or better rated corpoaaig municipal bonds wi
original maturities of more than three months atdhate of purchase regardless of the maturity amtbe Company views the funds within its
portfolio as available for use in its current opienas. The Company classifies all debt securitigh readily determined market values as
“available for sale.” The aggregate amount of CDs included in marketséxderities at February 24, 2013 and May 27, 2012%ta7 million
and zero, respectively. The contractual maturitfethe Company’s marketable securities that aeeiduliess than one year represented $3.5
million and zero of its marketable securities agelbruary 24, 2013 and May 27, 2012, respectivélye contractual maturities of the
Company’s marketable securities that are due intemeo years represented $251,000 and zero ofatketable securities as of February 24,
2013 and May 27, 2012, respectively. Investmentaanketable securities are carried at fair markéte. Unrealized gains and losses are
reported as other comprehensive income. The éalth securities is adjusted for amortization @rpiums and discounts to maturity. This
amortization is recorded to interest income. Redligains and losses on the sale of availablediersecurities are also recorded to interest
income and were not significant for the three aimé months ended February 24, 2013 and Februar®@&,. During the three and nine
months ended February 24, 2013, the Company didalbany marketable securities. During the tteé nine months ended February 26,
2012, the Company sold $9.1 million of marketalgeusities. The cost of securities sold is basetherspecific identification method.

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are primariynposed of marketable securities, commercial-teahet payables, grower
advances, notes receivable and debt instrumertsshert-term instruments, the historical carryéimgount approximates the fair value of the
instrument. The fair value of long-term debt aing$ of credit approximates their carrying vallir values for long-term financial
instruments not readily marketable are estimatesgdbapon discounted future cash flows at prevaitiagket interest rates. Based on these
assumptions, management believes the fair marke¢yaf the Company’s financial instruments arematerially different from their
recorded amounts as of February 24, 2013 or MapQ@T2.




Investments in Non-Public Companies

The Company’s investment in Aesthetic Sciences @uattpn (“Aesthetic Sciences”) is carried at casd adjusted for impairment
losses. Since there is no readily available nmar&keie information, the Company periodically revsethis investment to determine if any
other than temporary declines in value have ocduresed on the financial stability and viabilityAdsthetic Sciences.

On February 15, 2011, the Company made an investim&¥indset Holdings 2010 Ltd., a Canadian corpora(“Windset”), which
is reported as an investment in non-public compétailyyalue, in the accompanying Consolidated BedaSheets as of February 24, 2013 and
May 27, 2012. The Company has elected to accauriitsfinvestment in Windset under the fair valpgian (see Note 4).

Intangible Assets

The Company'’s intangible assets are comprised stbmer relationships with a finite estimated uséfalof twelve to thirteen years
and trade names and goodwill with indefinite lives.

Finite-lived intangible assets are reviewed forgilde impairment whenever events or changes imgistances occur that indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset (or assefpynmay not be recoverable. Indefinite lived intidfgyassets are reviewed for impairment at
least annually by comparing the fair value of theed to its carrying value to determine if thers been an impairment. Goodwill is reviewed
for impairment at least annually by comparing thie ¥alue of the related reporting unit to its garg value to determine if there has been an
impairment.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurement accoufatirimancial assets and liabilities and for finedénstruments and certain
other items at fair value. The Company has eletttedair value option for its investment in a noublic company (see Note 4). The
Company has not elected the fair value option fiyraf its other eligible financial assets or lidtgls.

The accounting guidance established a thiexehierarchy for fair value measurements, whigbrjtizes the inputs used in measur
fair value as follows:

Level 1- observable inputs such as quoted prices for id@ntistruments in active marke

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in active markeds are observable either directly or indirectlyotigh corroboration wit
observable market dat

Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which therkttle or no market data, which would require then@pany to develop its own
assumptions

As of February 24, 2013, the Company held certagets and liabilities that are required to be meakat fair value on a recurring
basis, including cash equivalents, marketable géEsjrinterest rate swap and its minority inteiagestment in Windset.

The fair value of the Company’s cash equivalentsraarketable securities is determined based omradisle inputs that are readily
available in public markets or can be derived fiaformation available in publicly quoted market$iefefore, the Company has categorized
its cash equivalents and marketable securitiesaslLl.

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate svgagetermined based on model inputs that can beredd in a liquid market,
including yield curves, and is categorized as L&visputs.

The fair value of the Company’s liability for congient consideration as of May 27, 2012 was basegigmificant inputs not
observed in the market and thus represented a Bawvalasurement. The Company determined the fhiea the liability for the contingent
consideration as of May 27, 2012, based on a pitifyalveighted discounted cash flow analysis, adiar discussed in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.




The Company has elected the fair value optioscobunting for its investment in Windset. The faifue of the Company’s
investment in Windset utilizes significant unobsdse inputs in the discounted cash flow modelduttiag projected cash flows, growth ra
and discount rates. As a result, the Company’'ssmaent in Windset is considered to be a Level 8smement investment, as further
discussed in Note 4. The change in the fair mar&kte of the Company’s investment in Windset far three and nine months ended
February 24, 2013 was due to the Company’s 20.186nty interest in the change in the fair markdtueaof Windset during those
periods. In determining the fair value of theaatment in Windset, the Company utilizes the folfapsignificant unobservable inputs in the
discounted cash flow models:

At February 2¢
201 At May 27, 201,

Revenue growth rates 3% to 12% 3% to 24%
Expense growth rates 3% to 9% 3% to 18%
Income tax rates 15% 25%

Discount rates 19% to 29% 14% to 21%

The revenue growth, expense gramith income tax rate assumptions, consider the Cayfphest estimate of the trends in those
items over the discount period. The discount asgimption takes into account the risk-free ratetarn, the market equity risk premium
and the Company'’s specific risk premium and thesliap an additional discount for lack of liquidiby the underlying securities. The
discounted cash flow valuation model used by thea@any has the following sensitivity to changesipuits and assumptions (in thousands):

Impact on value «
Windset investment as
February 24, 201

10% increase in revenue growth rates $ 1,35(
10% increase in expense growth rates $ (1,050
10% increase in income tax rates $ (75)
10% increase in discount rates $ (825)

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market isman affect the amount of gain or loss recordea fearticular position. The use
of different methodologies or assumptions to deieerthe fair value of certain financial instrumeotaild result in a different estimate of fair
value at the reporting date.

The following table summarizes the fair value & @ompany’s assets and liabilities that are medsatr&ir value on a recurring
basis as of February 24, 2013 and May 27, 201th@nsands):

Fair Value at February 24, 2013 Fair Value at May 27, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:

Marketable securities $ 3,79C $ - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
Investment in private company - - 27,80( - s 21,50(
Total $ 3,79C $ - $ 27,800 $ - % - $ 21,50(
Liabilities:

Contingent consideration $ - $ - $ - % - % - $ 3,93¢
Interest rate swap - 203 - - 347 -
Total $ - $ 205 % - $ - $ 347 $ 3,93:

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the earninge$s is complete, as evidenced by an agreeméntheitcustomer, transfer
title, and acceptance, if applicable, as well asdipricing and probable collectibility. The Compgaecords pricing allowances, including
discounts based on arrangements with customeastexiuction to both accounts receivable and nemes.

When a sales arrangement contains multiple elemimet€ompany allocates revenue to each elemeatitmsa selling price
hierarchy. The relative selling price for a deliadele is based on its vendor-specific objective enae (VSOE), if available, third-party
evidence (TPE), if VSOE is not available, or estidaselling price, if neither VSOE nor TPE is aable. The Company then recognizes
revenue on each deliverable in accordance withalisies for product and service revenue recognitithe Company is not typically able to
determine VSOE or TPE, and therefore, uses estihsatiting prices to allocate revenue between temehts of the arrangement.






The Company limits the amount of revenue recognittx delivered elements to the amount that iscoeatingent on the future
delivery of products or services or future perfonemobligations or subject to customer-specifiaceiation rights. The Company evaluates
each deliverable in an arrangement to determinghehé¢hey represent separate units of accountindelerable constitutes a separate unit
of accounting when it has stand-alone value, andricarrangement that includes a general righ¢tofrn relative to the delivered products or
services, delivery or performance of the undelidgreduct or service is considered probable asdlstantially controlled by the
Company. The Company considers a deliverable e k&nd-alone value if the product or serviceld separately by the Company or
another vendor or could be resold by the custorkarther, the revenue arrangements generally donolotde a general right of return relat
to the delivered products. Where the aforementiamieria for a separate unit of accounting aremet, the deliverable is combined with the
undelivered element(s) and treated as a singleofiaitcounting for the purposes of allocation & #irangement consideration and revenue
recognition. The Company allocates the total ayeament consideration to each separable elememt afrangement based upon the relative
selling price of each element. Allocation of tlmmsideration is determined at arrangement incetiothe basis of each unit’s relative selling
price. Ininstances where the Company has nablesttad fair value for any undelivered elementgeraye for all elements is deferred until
delivery of the final element is completed andr@tlognition criteria are met.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to peadogd financial statements to conform to the curpeiod presentation.
New Accounting Pronouncements
Intangible-Goodwill and Other

In September 2011, the FASB issued new guidantemitiallow an entity to first assess qualitatifaxtors to determine whether it
necessary to perform the two-step quantitative gdlbend intangibles impairment test. Under thisemdment, an entity would not be
required to calculate the fair value of a reportimit unless the entity determines, based on dtgtia¢ assessment, that it is more likely than
not that its fair value is less than its carryimgoaunt. The amendment includes a number of eventgiacumstances for an entity to consider
in conducting the qualitative assessment. Theanaed is effective for fiscal years beginning aBecember 15, 2011 with early adoption
permitted. The Company adopted this standard beyirin fiscal year 2013 and the adoption did retéha material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Presentation of Comprehensive Inca

In December 2011, the FASB issued new guidanceari@abves the comparability, consistency, and fpansncy of financial
reporting and increases the prominence of itemarteg in other comprehensive income by eliminathmgoption to present components of
other comprehensive income as part of the stateofatitanges in stockholders' equity. The amendmiantss standard require that all non-
owner changes in stockholders' equity be presagitedr in a single continuous statement of comprelve income or in two separate but
consecutive statements. Under either method, t@rgs must be displayed for items that are reifled$rom other comprehensive income
("OCI") to net income, in both net income and OChe standard does not change the current optioorésenting components of OCI gross
or net of the effect of income taxes, provided thath tax effects are presented in the statememhiich OCI is presented or disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. Additionalg standard does not affect the calculation orrteygpof earnings per share. For public
entities, the amendments in this ASU are effedtivdiscal years, and interim periods within thg®ars, beginning after December 15, 2011
and are to be applied retrospectively, with eadyion permitted. The Company adopted this stahidaginning in fiscal year 2013.
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Fair Value Measuremei

In May 2011, the FASB issued new guidance effediiveannual reporting periods beginning after Deloenil5, 2011. This guidan
amends certain accounting and disclosure requirtsmelated to fair value measurements. Additialistlosure requirements in the update
include: (1) for Level 3 fair value measurementgmitative information about unobservable inpwsd) a description of the valuation
processes used by the entity, and a qualitativaiggon about the sensitivity of the measurementhanges in the unobservable inputs; (2)
for an entity’s use of a nonfinancial asset thalifferent from the asset’s highest and best User¢ason for the difference; (3) for financial
instruments not measured at fair value but for Whiisclosure of fair value is required, the faitueahierarchy level in which the fair value
measurements were determined; and (4) the diséasdwall transfers between Level 1 and Level Zheffair value hierarchy. The Company
adopted this standard beginning in fiscal year 2013

Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabili

In November 2011, the FASB issued new guidance®fi=for annual reporting periods beginning Japuar2013. This guidance
amends the disclosure requirements around offgettienable users of the financial statements tiergtand the effect of those arrangements
on its financial position. Entities are requitedisclose both gross and net information aboaiiristruments and transactions eligible for
offset in the statement of financial position anstiuments and transactions subject to an agreesimitér to a master netting
arrangement. The Company does not expect theiadagtthis standard to have a material impactteronsolidated financial statements.

2. Acquisitions
GreenLine Holding Company

On April 23, 2012 (the “GreenLine Acquisition DafeApio acquired all of the outstanding equity ae@nLine Holding Company
(“GreenLine”) pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agrediftee “GreenLine Purchase Agreement”) in ordegxpand its product offerings and
enter into new markets such as foodservice. Grieenheadquartered in Bowling Green, Ohio, wasiafely-held company and is the
leading processor and marketer of value-addedhdtesgreen beans in North America. GreenLinefbasprocessing plants one each in
Ohio, Pennsylvania, Florida and California andriisttion centers in New York and South Carolina.

Under the GreenLine Purchase Agreement, the aggregasideration paid at closing consisted of $&&lBon in cash, including
$4.7 million that is held in an escrow accountéowse Landec’s indemnification rights with respectertain matters, including breaches of
representations, warranties and covenants. Iniaddthe GreenLine Purchase Agreement includectanpial earn out payment up to $7.0
million in the event that GreenLine achieved certaévenue targets during calendar year 2012. aheaut was comprised of $4.0 million
achieving a certain revenue target during calegdar 2012, and up to an additional $3.0 milliondeceeding the revenue target by $3.0
million or more. In April 2012, the Company perfoed an analysis of projected revenues for Greendmakeconcluded at that time that there
was a reasonable probability that GreenLine woulgtybut not exceed, the initial revenue targetthatefore, the Company recorded a $3.9
million liability as of May 27, 2012, representitige present value of the fair market value of tkgeeted earn out payment. As a result o
severe drought in the Midwest during 2012, lowamntlexpected results from new product launches endptanned business not being
realized, during the second quarter of fiscal &3, the Company determined that GreenLine woatdaohieve the earn out revenue target
and, therefore, the Company reversed the $3.9amiliability recorded for the earn out and recordembrresponding credit to the “Change in
value of contingent consideration” in its Consol@hCondensed Statements of Comprehensive Incantiefmine months ended February
24, 2013.

The acquisition date fair value of the total coesidion transferred was $66.8 million, which coteslof the following (in

thousands):

Cash $ 62,90(

Contingent consideration 3,93:
Total $ 66,83!
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The assets and liabilities of GreenLine were reedrat their respective estimated fair values dheflate of the acquisition using
generally accepted accounting principles for bussrmombinations. The excess of the purchase pvieetbe fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired has been allocated to goodwilld@iticepresents a substantial portion of the asijon proceeds because of the workforce
in-place at acquisition and because of GreenLilogig history and future prospects. Managemernébes that there is further growth
potential by extending GreenLine’s product lineg® inew channels, such as club stores.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of GreenLine’s assets acquired and liatsldigsumed and related deferred
income taxes, effective April 23, 2012, the date @ompany obtained control of GreenLine (in thodsan

Accounts receivable, net $ 7,057
Inventories, net 1,40¢
Property and equipment 11,66¢
Other tangible assets 30€
Intangible assets 43,50(
Total identifiable assets acquired 63,94
Accounts payable and other liabilities (8,39))
Deferred taxes (1,875
Total liabilities assumed (10,266)
Net identifiable assets acquired 53,67t
Goodwill 13,15¢
Net assets acquired $ 66,83

The Company used a combination of the market astiajgproaches to estimate the fair values of tlee@rine assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. During the measurement pefiduch is not to exceed one year from the acdaisitlate), the Company is required to
retrospectively adjust the provisional assetsabilities if new information is obtained about faeind circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have rediite the recognition of those assets or liabiliagsof that date. No adjustments were made
to the fair values of GreenLine assets acquirdihbilities assumed during the nine months enddatiaay 24, 2013. The Company has
finalized the fair values of the acquired assetsassumed liabilities and has completed the puechése allocation.

Intangible Asset

The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets was determined using a discountedficagimodel, under an income
valuation methodology, based on management’s feag-projections of revenues, gross profits andadjpey profits by fiscal year and
assumes a 40% effective tax rate for each yeamalglment takes into account the historical trefiddreenLine and the industry categories
in which GreenLine operates along with inflationagtors, current economic conditions, new prodictbductions, cost of sales, operating
expenses, capital requirements and other relexaatwhen developing its projection. The Compariebes that the level and timing of
projected cash flows appropriately reflect marlatipipant assumptions. The projected cash floasfthese intangibles were based on key
assumptions such as estimates of revenues andioggueofits related to the intangibles over thespective forecast periods. The resultant
cash flows were then discounted using a rate thepaay believes is appropriate given the inheresiksrassociated with each intangible asset
and reflect market participant assumptions.

The Company identified two intangible assets innemion with the GreenLine acquisition: trade naisued trademarks valued at
$36.0 million, which is considered to be an indiedirife asset and therefore, will not be amortizad customer base valued at $7.5 million
with a thirteen year useful life. The trade nanaelémark intangible asset was valued using thef fedie royalty valuation method and the
customer relationship intangible asset was valsuuhe distributor method.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred oeefatin values assigned to the assets acquiredaitities assumed was
$13.2 million on the closing date, which represehésgoodwill amount resulting from the acquisitishich can be attributable to GreenLige’
long history, future prospects and the expectedatipg synergies from combining GreenLine with Apifresh-cut, value-added vegetable
business. None of the goodwill is expected todxdudtible for income tax purposes. The Compantest goodwill for impairment on an
annual basis or sooner, if indicators of impairnmemet present.
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Deferred Tax Liabilities

The $1.9 million of net deferred tax liabilitiestéting from the acquisition was primarily relatedthe difference between the book
basis and tax basis of the intangible assets anopeeating losses that were assumed by the Conipahg acquisition.

Lifecore Biomedical, Inc.

On April 30, 2010, the Company acquired all of tenmon stock of Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. (“Life@dy pursuant to a Stock
Purchase Agreement (“Lifecore Purchase Agreemém@jder to expand its product offerings and ety new markets. Lifecore was a
privately-held hyaluronan-based biomaterials compgacated in Chaska, Minnesota. Lifecore is ppadly involved in the development and
manufacture of products utilizing hyaluronan, aunaity occurring polysaccharide that is widely distited in the extracellular matrix of
connective tissues in both animals and humans.

Under the Lifecore Purchase Agreement, the Compaid/to the former Lifecore stockholder at closing
$40.0 million in cash, which included $6.6 millibeld in an escrow account. Half of the escrow3B$nillion was released and paid to the
former Lifecore shareholder in May 2011. The oth&f was released and paid to the former Lifesti@eholder in May 2012. In additior
the cash consideration paid to the former sharehaftiLifecore, the Lifecore Purchase Agreemeniuished an earn out payment of up to an
additional $10.0 million based on Lifecore achigviertain revenue targets in calendar years 20d2@h2. These revenue targets were
achieved in calendar year 2011 and the $10.0 mi#&rn out payment was paid by the Company todhedr shareholder of Lifecore on V
29, 2012.

3. Sale of Landec Ag

On June 24, 2012, Landec entered into a stock paechgreement and two licensing agreements (seed)Notith INCOTEC®
Coating and Seed Technology Companies (“INCOTE&Ngading provider of seed and coating technolaggyrcts and services to the seed
industry.

In the stock purchase agreement, Landec sold iisyeigterest in its seed subsidiary, Landec Ag LEECINCOTEC for $600,000,
which resulted in a gain of $400,000. Under actiogrguidance, because the stock purchase agreevasréntered into at the same time the
license agreements were consummated (a multipteegieagreement), a portion of the gain, or $30Q,866 been deferred and will be
recognized as revenue monthly from the sale date ttve seven year life of the Pollinator Plus®rise agreement (see Note 5). The
remaining $100,000 of the gain was recognized dutie first quarter of fiscal year 2013.

4, Investments in non-public companies

In December 2005, Landec entered into a licensingeanent with Aesthetic Sciences for the exclusiylets to use Landec's
Intelimer materials technology for the development of derfitlals worldwide under the agreement. The Compaatgived shares of
preferred stock in exchange for the license witlalaation of $1.8 million. Aesthetic Sciences sthid rights to its Smartfil™ Injector System
on July 16, 2010. Landec has evaluated its investim Aesthetic Sciences for impairment, utilizengiscounted cash flow analysis under
the terms of the purchase agreement. Based daerihs of the sale, the Company determined thatvestment was other than temporarily
impaired and therefore, recorded an impairmentgghaf $1.0 million as of May 30, 2010. The Compamarrying value of its investment
Aesthetic Sciences is $793,000 as of February @43 2nd May 27, 2012. No additional impairment besn determined for the Company’s
investment in Aesthetic Sciences.
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On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharelage agreement (the “Windset Purchase Agreemeitti’)Windset. Pursuant to
the Windset Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased@8Genior preferred shares for $15 million and @hmon shares for $201 that were
issued by Windset (the “Purchased Shares”). Thagamy’s common shares represent a 20.1% inter&¥iridset. The non-voting senior
preferred shares yield a cash dividend of 7.5% allywuThe dividend is payable within 90 days ofle@anniversary of the execution of the
Windset Purchase Agreement and the first dividemdrent of $1.1 million was made in May 2012. Thentidiet Purchase Agreement
includes a put and call option, which can be eseurtion the sixth anniversary of the Windset Pueih@geement whereby Apio can exercise
the put to sell its Purchased Shares to Windsad/indset can exercise the call to purchase thehasexd Shares from Apio, in either case,
price equal to 20.1% of the appreciation in the fiz@rket value of Windset from the date of the Camyps investment through the put and
call date, plus the purchase price of the Purch&bedes. Under the terms of the arrangement with WindsetGbmpany is entitled to
designate one of five members on the Board of Borswf Windset.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the investrimn Windset does not qualify for equity methedaunting as the investment
does not meet the criteria of in-substance comnmokgue to returns through the annual dividend lo& non-voting senior preferred shares
that are not available to the common stock hold&sthe put and call options require the Purch&wates to be put or called in equal
proportions, the Company has deemed that the inagt in substance, should be treated as a siagleaity for purposes of accounting. The
Company has adopted fair value option in the acogifior its investment in Windset effective on @aequisition date. The fair value of the
Company’s investment in Windset utilizes significanobservable inputs in the discounted cash flawdels, including projected cash flows,
growth rates and discount rates (see Note 1) atieisfore considered Level 3 for fair value meament purposes. The Company believes
that reporting its investment at fair value prowdts investors with useful information on the penfiance of the Company’s investment and
the anticipated appreciation in value as Windspaass its business.

The fair value of the Company’s investment in Wietdsas determined utilizing a discounted cash fio@del based on projections
developed by Windset, and considers the put aldcaversion options. These features impact thratdn of the cash flow utilized to deri
the estimated fair value of the investment. Asstiimng included in the discounted cash flow modél aé evaluated quarterly based on
Windset'’s actual and projected operating result$etermine the change in fair value.

During the three and nine months ended Februar@43 and February 26, 2012, the Company recor@8d, 800 and $844,000,
respectively, in dividend income. The change mfdir market value of the Company’s investmenpimdset for the three months ended
February 24, 2013 and February 26, 2012 was $1li@dmand $3.6 million, respectively, and is incedlin other income in the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income. The chantgifair market value of the Compasyhvestment in Windset for the nine months el
February 24, 2013 and February 26, 2012 was $dl®dmand $4.7 million, respectively, and is incedlin other income in the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The Company also entered into an exclusive licagseement with Windset, which was executed in 2016, prior to
contemplation of Apio’s investment in Windset (dé&te 5).

5. Collaborative Agreements

Monsanto

On December 1, 2006, Landec entered into a five-geaxclusive technology license and polymer sypgreement ¢he Monsant
Agreement”) with Monsanto Company (“Monsanto”) fbe use of Landec’s Intellicogbolymer seed coating technology. On December 1,
2011, Monsanto terminated the Monsanto Agreemeshpard the Company a $4 million termination fee alidights to the Intellicoatseed

coating technology reverted to Landec.

For the nine months ended February 26, 2012, Laretegnized $2.7 million in license revenues from Monsanto Agreement.
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INCOTEC

In connection with the sale of Landec Ag to INCOT&CJune 24, 2012 (see Note 3), Landec enteredistyen-year exclusive
technology license and polymer supply agreemertt IMRCOTEC for the use of Landec’s Intellicégpolymer seed coating technology for
male inbred corn which is sold under the Pollin&hrs label. This license does not include theafidetellicoat for the controlled release of
an active ingredient for agricultural applicatiamsich was retained by Landec. Landec will be thelesive supplier of Pollinator Plus
polymer to INCOTEC during the term of the licengeement. Landec will receive a royalty equal @8620f the revenues realized by
INCOTEC from the sale of or sublicense of Pollim&tus coatings during the first four years of dggeement and 10% for the last three y
of the agreement.

On June 24, 2012, Landec also entered into a #@a-gxclusive technology license and polymer supghgement with INCOTEC
for the joint development of new polymer and unigoatings for use in seed treatment formulatidnghis agreement, Landec will receive a
value share which will be mutually agreed to byhyoarties prior to each application being developed

Air Products

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusivenise and research and development agreement wifréducts and Chemicals,
Inc. (“Air Products”). In accordance with the agmeent, Landec receives 40% of the direct profitegated from the sale of products by Air
Products occurring after April 1, 2007, that inaangte Landec’s Intelimer materials.

Chiquita

In September 2007, the Company amended its licgrasid supply agreement with Chiquita Brands Intéonal, Inc.
(“Chiquita”). Under the terms of the amendmehg license for bananas was expanded to includéi@alli exclusive fields using Landec’s
BreatheWay® packaging technology, and a new exausiense was added for the sale and marketimy@tados and mangos using
Landec’s BreatheWay packaging technology. Theeageat with Chiquita has been renewed through Deeegilil6 and requires Chiquita
to pay annual gross profit minimums to Landec iteorfor Chiquita to maintain its exclusive licerisebananas, avocados and
mangos. Under the terms of the agreement, Chiquitt notify Landec before Decembeitdf each year whether it is going to maintain its
exclusive license for the following calendar yead ¢hus agree to pay the minimums for that yeamdec was notified in November 2012
that Chiquita has chosen to not maintain its exetuicense for calendar year 2013 and thus witlb®required to pay the minimum gross
profit for calendar year 2013. As a result, theeagient has reverted to a non-exclusive agreemavhich Chiquita will pay the Company
for membranes purchased on a per unit sales hasitha Company is now entitled to sell its Breatlag\Wackaging technology for bananas,
avocados and mangos to others.

Windset

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieemgreement with Windset for Windset to utilize dao's proprietary breathable
packaging to extend the shelf life of greenhoussvgrcucumbers, peppers and tomatoes (“ExclusivduRte”). In accordance with the
agreement, Apio received and recorded a one-tifreniresearch and development fee of $100,000nalhdeceive license fees equal to 3%
of net revenue of the Exclusive Products utilizihg proprietary breathable packaging technologth wi without the BreatheWay®
trademark. The ongoing license fees are subjemitoial minimums of $150,000 for each of the thyped of exclusive product as each is
added to the agreement. As of February 24, 2@i@ptoducts have been added to the agreement.

Nitta

In July 2012, the Company entered into a reseandidavelopment agreement with Nitta Corporatiodga@anese company, to
develop additional uses of the Company’s adhesiyamer technology for electronics. For the thrad aine months ended February 24,
2013, the Company recognized $275,000 and $413r68pectively, in research and development revefrapsthis agreement. The
agreement was amended in November 2012, to extehdxpand the scope of the work under the agreefoeahother six months. The
Company expects to recognize an additional $275/9@8search and development revenue under thededegreement during the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2013.
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6. Stock-Based Compensation

In the three and nine months ended February 243,28& Company recognized stock-based compensatipense of $464,000 and
$1,135,000, respectively, which included $230,000 $528,000 for restricted stock unit awards ar@4$200 and $607,000 for stock option
grants, respectively. In the three and nine moettted February 26, 2012, the Company recognipett-fiased compensation expense of
$429,000 and $1,314,000 respectively, which inadu$#92,000 and $587,000 for restricted stock umérds and $237,000 and $727,000 for
stock option grants, respectively.

The following table summarizes the stock-based @raation by income statement line item:

Three Month Three Month  Nine Months  Nine Months

Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 24, February 26, February 24, February 26,

2013 2012 2013 2012
Research and development $ 251,000 $ 136,000 $ 465,000 $  390,00(
Sales, general and administrative $ 213,000 $ 293,000 $ 670,000 $ 924,001
Total stock-based compensation $ 464,000 $ 429,000 $ 1,13500 $ 1,314,00

As of February 24, 2013, there was $1.0 millionatél unrecognized compensation expense relatadwested equity compensation
awards granted under the Landec equity plans.| €gpense is expected to be recognized over thghtard-average period of 1.6 years for
stock options and 1.3 years for restricted stockawards.

7. Diluted Net Income Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation tfitédd net income per share (in thousands, excepsipare amounts):

Three Three
Months Months Nine Months  Nine Months¢
Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 24 February 26 February 24 February 2€
2013 2012 2013 2012
Numerator:
Net income applicable to Common Stockholc $ 4,78¢ $ 4,765 3 18,06¢ $ 9,917
Denominator:
Weighted average shares for basic net income aee sh 25,83¢ 25,53¢ 25,75 25,94
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock units 82¢ 287 74C 261
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipare 26,667 25,82t 26,49: 26,20¢
Diluted net income per share $ 0.1t % 0.1t $ 0.6¢ $ 0.3¢

For the three months ended February 24, 2013 amdi&ey 26, 2012, the computation of the dilutedinebme per share excludes
the impact of options to purchase 95,527 shared @nhnhillion shares of Common Stock, respectivalyysuch impacts would be antidilutive
for these periods.

For the nine months ended February 24, 2013 andi&sb26, 2012, the computation of the dilutedinebme per share excludes

impact of options to purchase 88,128 shares anthlidn shares of Common Stock, respectively, ashsmpacts would be antidilutive for
these periods.
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8. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the three anemonths ended February 24, 2013 was $2.8 milimh$8.2 million,
respectively. The effective tax rate for the nimenths ended February 24, 2013 was 31% compai@8btofor the same periods in fiscal y
2012. The effective tax rate for the nine monthdeehFebruary 24, 2013 differs from the statutodefal income tax rate of 35% as a resu
several factors, including state taxes, domesticufacturing deduction, non-deductible stock-basedmensation expense and the benefit of
federal and state research and development crdditsddition, the tax expense for the nine moetided February 24, 2013 includes discrete
tax benefits for tax adjustments related to the-eait payment to the former GreenLine owners, uhdifying disposition on Incentive Stock
Options, and reinstatement of a prior year reseearetiit as a result of the American Taxpayer Relietfof 2012.

As of February 24, 2013, the Company had unrecegitiax benefits of approximately $1.0 million. Ibreed in the balance of
unrecognized tax benefits as of February 24, 28 Bpproximately $785,000 of tax benefits thatedagnized, would result in an adjustment
to the Company’s effective tax rate. The Compamgsduot expect to significantly change its unrecogghitax benefits within the next twelve
months.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the Compasydecided to classify interest and penaltiegaelto uncertain tax
positions as a component of its provision for inediaxxes. The Company has accrued an insignifaxaotunt of interest and penalties rela
to the income tax on the unrecognized tax benafitsf February 24, 2013 and May 27, 2012.

Due to tax attribute carry forwards, the Compansuisject to examination for tax years 1996 and fateU.S. tax purposes. The
Company was also subject to examination in vargtate jurisdictions for tax years 1998 and latenenof which were individually
significant.

9. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (finsfirst-out method) or market and consisted &f thllowing (in thousands):

February 24, May 27,
2013 2012
Finished goods $ 10,09¢ $ 9,40¢
Raw materials 9,22 9,87¢
Work in progress 3,06¢ 2,72¢
Total $ 22,38 $ 22,01.
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10. Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thonds):
February 24, 201 May 27, 2012

Real estate loan agreement with General Electrmt&laCorporation (“GE

Capital”); due in monthly principal and interesyp#ents of $133,060

through May 1, 2022 with interest based on a fisegd of 4.02% per annum $ 17,29. $ 17,957
Real estate bridge loan agreement with GE Cagitad;in monthly principal and

interest payments of $8,902 with a lump sum fimal@pal payment due on

May 1, 2013 with interest based on a fixed raté.62% per annum 1,15¢ 1,20(
Capital equipment loan with GE Capital; due in niprincipal and interest

payments of $175,356 through May 1, 2019 with edebased on a fixed

rate of 4.39% per annum 11,48¢ 12,66(
Term note with BMO Harris; due in monthly paymeat$250,000 through
May 23, 2016 with interest payable monthly at LIBPRS 2% per annum 9,75( 12,00(

Industrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”) issued by Lifegodue in annual payments
through 2020 with interest at a variable rate sekdy by the bond
remarketing agent (0.31% and 0.42% at Februarg@43 and May 27,

2012, respectively) 3,16( 3,50(
Total 42,84 47,31°
Less current portion (7,047 (7,012)
Long-term portion $ 35,79¢ $ 40,30¢

In addition to entering into the GE Capital reah#s and equipment loans mentioned above, on 2BriR012 in connection with the
acquisition of GreenLine, Apio also entered intiiva-year, $25.0 million assdtased working capital revolving line of credit wiHE Capital
with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2%, with montlalvailability based on the combination of the iblig accounts receivable and eligible
inventory (availability was $19.1 million at Febry&®4, 2013). Apio’s revolving line of credit has unused fee of 0.375% per annum. At
February 24, 2013 and May 27, 2012, Apio had $4lllomand $11.7 million, respectively, outstandingder its revolving line of credit.

Apio’s obligations under the GE Capital real estatpiipment and line of credit agreements (colletyithe “GE Debt Agreementgs”
are secured by liens on all of the property of Agal its subsidiaries. The GE Debt Agreementsatomustomary events of default under
which obligations could be accelerated or increasdte GE Capital real estate and equipment loengwaranteed by Landec and Landec
pledged its equity interest in Apio as collatenadier the line of credit agreement. The GE Debie&grents contain customary covenants,
such as limitations on the ability to (1) incur édedness or grant liens or negative pledges oo’'s\pssets; (2) make loans or other
investments; (3) pay dividends, sell stock or repase stock or other securities; (4) sell ass&sr(gage in mergers; (6) enter into sale and
leaseback transactions; and (7) make changes miAporporate structure. In addition, Apio must rteiima minimum fixed charge covere
ratio of 1.10 to 1.0. Apio was in compliance wathfinancial covenants as of February 24, 201Batdortized loan origination fees for the
GE Debt Agreements were $1.0 million and $1.3 orillat February 24, 2013 and May 27, 2012, respagtiand are included in Other
Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or ffdiates (“BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credlireement”) which includes (a) a one-year, $8.0ioni asset-based working capital
revolving line of credit, with an interest rateldBOR plus 1.85%, with availability based on therdmination of Lifecore’s eligible
accounts receivable and inventory balances (aukifjalvas $6.9 million at February 24, 2013) andhwno unused fee (at February
24,2013 and May 27, 2012, no amounts were outistgnohder the line of credit) and (b) a $12.0 roilliterm loan which matures in
four years due in monthly payments of $250,000 withrest payable monthly based on a variableéstaate of LIBOR plus 2%
(the “Term Loan”).
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2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to wBiRtO Harris caused its affiliate, Bank of Montretl,issue an irrevocable letter of
credit in the amount of $3.5 million (the “Lettefr@redit”) which is securing the IRBs describeddvel

Lifecore’s obligations under the Lifecore Loan Agmeents are secured by liens on all of the propdrbyfecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such dstioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesg@ant liens or negative pledges on
Lifecore’s assets; (2) make loans or other inveatsd3) pay dividends or repurchase stock or adbeurities; (4) sell assets; (5) engage in
mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaseback transac(7) adopt certain benefit plans; and (8) metk@nges in Lifecore’s corporate
structure. In addition, under the Credit Agreemeifecore must maintain (a) a minimum fixed chaogeerage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a
minimum quick ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of whictust be satisfied as of the end of each fiscaltqguand (b) a minimum tangible net worth
of $29,000,000, measured as of May 26, 2013, and the end of each fiscal year thereafter. Lifeawas in compliance with all financial
covenants as of February 24, 2013. Unamortizeu domgination fees for the Lifecore Loan Agreement&ge $161,000 and $139,000 as of
February 24, 2013 and May 27, 2012, respectivelgt,ae included in Other Assets in the Consolid8@dnce Sheets.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s fornmedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of
Credit (which replaces a letter of credit previgystovided by Wells Fargo) provides liquidity anedit support for the IRBs.

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued IRBs. ThedgslRere assumed by Landec in the acquisition afddfe. The IRBs are
collateralized by a bank letter of credit whiclsécured by a first mortgage on the Company’s fgditi Chaska, Minnesota. In addition, the
Company pays anannual remarketing fee equal to 0.125% and an atetter of credit fee of 0.75%. The maturitiestbe IRBs are held in
a sinking fund account, recorded in Other Curresgels in the accompanying Consolidated Balancet§heral are paid out each year on
September #.

11. Derivative Financial Instruments

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yaterest rate swap agreement which expires on A0riR015, under its prior
credit agreement with Wells Fargo. The interets savap was designated as a cash flow hedge o&firtterest payments of LIBOR and had
a notional amount of $20 million. As a result of thterest rate swap transaction, the Company fiaed five-year period the interest rate at
4.24% subject to market based interest rate riska@hmillion of borrowings under the prior credifraement with Wells Fargo. The
Company’s obligations under the interest rate straapsaction as to the scheduled payments weremjeachand secured on the same basis a:
its obligations under the credit agreement with [¢/Elrgo at the time the agreement was consummatedmentioned in Note 10, upon
entering into the new Term Loan with BMO Harrise tBompany used the proceeds from that loan to fidlgeoWells Fargo credit
facility. The swap with Wells Fargo was not teratied upon the extinguishment of the debt with Wiellsgo. As a result of extinguishing
the debt with Wells Fargo as of May 23, 2012, thapswas no longer an effective hedge and therefloecfair value of the swap at the time
the debt was extinguished of $347,000 was revedrset other comprehensive income and recorded iar@Rkpense during fiscal year
2012. The fair value of the swap arrangement &ebfuary 24, 2013 and May 27, 2012 was $203,0605847,000, respectively, and is
included in other non-current liabilities in thecampanying balance sheet. The change in the d&ievof the swap of $45,000 and $144,000
for the three and nine months ended February 243 Brecorded in other income in the accompan@aogsolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income.

12. Related Party

The Company provides cooling and distribution sagsito both a farm and Beachside Produce LLC ("Bs&de"), a commodity
produce distributor, in which the Chairman of Apias a farming and ownership interest, respectivéduring the three months ended
February 24, 2013 and February 26, 2012, the Coynpnognized revenues of $334,000 and $698,000ectisely, which have been
included in product sales and in service revenu¢ise accompanying Consolidated Statements of Celmepisive Income, from the sale of
products and providing cooling services to thestigm During the nine months ended February R432and February 26, 2012, the
Company recognized revenues of $2.0 million an8 $3llion, respectively, which have been includegroduct sales and in service
revenues in the accompanying Consolidated Statenoéi@omprehensive Income, from the sale of praxlantl providing cooling services to
these parties. The related receivable balance31#,800 and $323,000 are included in accountsvabls in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets as of February 24, 2013 and Ma3M2, respectively.
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Additionally, unrelated to the revenue transactiabsve, the Company purchases produce from Beaglesidrm in which the
Chairman of Apio has an ownership interest, andda&n for sale to third parties. During the thresnths ended February 24, 2013 and
February 26, 2012, the Company recognized costafyet sales of $933,000 and $940,000, respectiwdlich have been included in cost of
product sales in the accompanying Consolidatea®&tits of Comprehensive Income, from the saleadymts purchased from these
parties. During the nine months ended Februar@43 and February 26, 2012, the Company recogmiasidof product sales of $4.8
million and $3.8 million, respectively, which halieen included in cost of product sales in the agamying Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income, from the sale of productstmged from these parties. The related accougtbfeof $191,000 and $776,000 are
included in related party accounts payable in tewmpanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Bgb24, 2013 and May 27, 2012,
respectively.

All related party transactions are monitored quértey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteriof the Board of
Directors.

13. Stockholders’ Equity

During the nine months ended February 24, 2013Ctrapany granted options to purchase 20,000 sbéa@snmon stock and 6,6
of restricted stock unit awards.

As of February 24, 2013 the Company has resengeth2lion shares of Common Stock for future issweaoader its current and
former equity plans.

On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tleedBaf Directors of the Company had approved thabéishment of a stock
repurchase plan which allows for the repurchaagdb $10 million of the Company’'s Common Stockhe Company may repurchase its
common stock from time to time in open market pasgs or in privately negotiated transactions. tirhimg and actual number of shares
repurchased is at the discretion of managemeiteo€ompany and will depend on a variety of factmduding stock price, corporate and
regulatory requirements, market conditions, thatiet attractiveness of other capital deploymeipoofunities and other corporate
priorities. The stock repurchase program doe®hbgate Landec to acquire any amount of its comstook and the program may be
modified, suspended or terminated at any timeatbmpany's discretion without prior notice. Dgrlwoth the three and nine months ended
February 24, 2013, the Company did not purchaseshases on the open market.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderEquity (in thousands, except share amounts)

February 24, 201

Common Stock Shares

Balance at May 27, 2012 25,644,58
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 250,58
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares testler 11,24¢
Balance at February 24, 2013 25,906,41

Common Stock

Balance at May 27, 2012 $ 26
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered —
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares textler —

Balance at February 24, 2013 $ 26

Additional Paid-in Capital

Balance at May 27, 2012 $ 119,89:
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 1,38t
Taxes paid by Company for RSUs vested (49
Stock-based compensation expense 1,13¢
Tax-benefit from stock based compensation expense 2,74:
Balance at February 24, 2013 $ 125,10¢
Retained Earnings

Balance at May 27, 2012 $ 29,82:
Net income 18,06¢

Balance at February 24, 2013 $ 47,89(




Non controlling Interest

Balance at May 27, 2012

Non controlling interest in net incon
Distributions to non controlling interest

Balance at February 24, 2013
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14. Business Segment Reporting

The Company manages its business operations thtbugh strategic business units. Based upon fhemiation reported to the ch
operating decision maker, who is the Chief Exeau@fficer, the Company has the following reporta@gments : the Food Products
Technology segment, the Food Export segment andyh&ironan-based Biomaterials segment.

The Food Products Technology segment markets acid ppecialty packaged whole and fresh-cut vegegabht incorporate the
BreatheWay specialty packaging for the retail grpcelub store and food services industry. In &ddj the Food Products Technology
segment sells BreatheWay packaging to partnensdiorvegetable products. The Food Export segmertisis of revenues generated from
the purchase and sale of primarily whole commoaiftitit and vegetable products to Asia and domedgicalhe HA-based Biomaterials
segment sells products utilizing hyaluronan, a radlpioccurring polysaccharide that is widely distited in the extracellular matrix of
connective tissues in both animals and humansnéafical use primarily in the Ophthalmic, Orthopeali@ Veterinary markets. As a resul
the sale of Landec Ag to INCOTEC and the termimatibthe Monsanto Agreement in fiscal year 2012 ,@lompany has eliminated the
Technology Licensing segment and combined the maeaiof that business into the Corporate segmasta result of this change, the
segment information for the three and nine montited February 26, 2012 has been reclassified ttoaorwith the current year
classification. Corporate licenses Landec’s paiintellicoat seed coatings to the farming induatrd licenses the Company’s Intelimer
polymers for personal care products and other imdliproducts. Corporate also includes generdladministrative expenses, non Food
Products Technology and non HA-based Biomatenidérést income and Compamyde income tax expenses. Beginning in fiscal &3,
the Food Products Technology, the Food Export hadHyaluronan-based Biomaterials segments inclbdeges for corporate services and
tax sharing allocated from the Corporate segmAtitof the assets of the Company are located withanUnited States of America. The
Company’s international sales were as follows (ittions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
February 24, February 26, February 24, February 26,

2013 2012 2013 2012
Taiwan $ 2¢ S 2C % 28.1 % 20.¢
Canada $ 74 3 54 % 197 % 15.2
Indonesia $ 41 $ 54 % 17€ $ 19.c
Belgium $ 106 $ 6.C $ 15z $ 14.1
Japan $ 1t % 1€ $ 74 % 7.8
All Other Countries $ 7€ $ 45 3 20z $ 14.F
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Operations by segment consisted of the followingtbusands):

Food

Products HA-based
Three Months Ended February 24, 2013 Technology Food Export Biomaterials Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 86,707 $ 13,38. $ 17,331 $ 44 $ 117,86
International sales $ 7,29 $ 13,38 $ 13,57¢ $ — $ 34,25
Gross profit $ 5,84¢ $ 1,031 $ 10,24: $ 38 % 17,50¢
Net income (loss $ 33 % 226 % 5687 $ (1,469 $ 4,78¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 1,22¢ % 1 $ 602 $ 39 % 1,86¢
Dividend Income $ 281 $ — 3 — — 3 281
Interest income $ 4 $ — 8 42 3 — 3 46
Interest expense $ 421 % — % 66 $ — 3 487
Income tax expense $ 112 $ 76 $ 1,89 $ 67C $ 2,754
Three Months Ended February 26, 2012
Net sales $ 56,45¢ $ 12,38¢ $ 11,06¢ $ 154 $ 80,06«
International sales $ 517¢ $ 12,15¢ $ 7,600 $ — $ 24,93¢
Gross profit $ 547¢ $ 917 $ 6,62 $ 154 $ 13,17:
Net income (loss $ 5851 $ 33€ $ 397C $ (5,395 $ 4,76¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 762 $ 2 % 572 $ 46 $ 1,38
Dividend Income $ 281 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 281
Interest income $ 12 $ — $ 43 % 8 $ 63
Interest expense $ — 3 — 8 152 $ — % 15z
Income tax expense $ — 8 — $ — 8 2,92( $ 2,92(
Nine Months Ended February 24, 2(
Net sales $ 23393 $ 66,85 $ 33,04: % 767 $ 334,59!
International sales $ 19,478 $ 66,747 $ 22,60 % — $ 108,82!
Gross profit $ 28,89 $ 4,407 $ 15,72 $ 707 $ 49,73(
Net income (loss $ 15,46¢ $ 1,40 $ 571 $ (4,519 $ 18,06¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 3,632 $ 3 % 1,777 $ 11z $ 5,52
Dividend Income $ 844 % — $ — 3 — 3 844
Interest income $ 12 $ — 3 92 $ — $ 104
Interest expense $ 1,30 % — % 222 % — 3 1,52¢
Income tax expense $ 3,84¢ $ 467 $ 1,90/ % 2,021 $ 8,23¢
Nine Months Ended February ., 2012
Net sales $ 146,51 $ 57,97: $ 27,42: % 3,02¢ $ 234,93!
International sales $ 14,89( $ 57,61¢ $ 19,25 $ — $ 91,75¢
Gross profit $ 16,06¢ $ 3,73: % 14,60: $ 3,02¢ $ 37,43:
Net income (loss $ 11,84¢ $ 1,72¢ $ 7,27C $ (10,929 $ 9,91
Depreciation and amortization $ 2,31 % 6 $ 1,65t $ 137 % 4,111
Dividend Income $ 844 % — 3 — 3 — $ 844
Interest income $ 42 $ — $ 148 % 28 % 21¢
Interest expense $ — 3 — 8 492 $ — 3 492
Income tax expense $ — $ — $ — $ 6,07¢ $ 6,07¢

During the nine months ended February 24, 201 3aiduary 26, 2012, sales to the Company’s topdisstomers accounted for
39% and 44%, respectively, of revenues. The Cogipaop customer from the Food Products Technokegment accounting for 14% and
17% for the nine months ended February 24, 2013Fabhduary 26, 2012, respectively. The Company espéat, for the foreseeable future,
a limited number of customers may continue to antéar a significant portion of its net revenues.

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the unaudited consolidated financial stegaets and accompanying notes

included in Part I-Iltem 1 of this Form 10-Q and thelited consolidated financial statements andrapenying notes and Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations included in Landec’s Annugp&t on Form 10-K for the fiscal



year ended May 27, 2012.
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Except for the historical information containeddiar the matters discussed in this report are faii@oking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchangteof1934. These forward-looking statements imgalertain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materiallynfrthose in the forward-looking statements. Po#énigks and uncertainties include, without
limitation, those mentioned in this Form 10-Q ahdse mentioned in Landec’s Annual Report on ForAK X6r the fiscal year ended May :
2012. Landec undertakes no obligation to updatevise any forward-looking statements in ordereftect events or circumstances that may
arise after the date of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

There have been no material changes to the Congpanitytal accounting policies which are included @escribed in the Form 10-
for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2012 filed whie Securities and Exchange Commission on AuguXg,.

The Company

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aitpmlymer products for
food and agricultural products, medical devices lasahsed partner applications that incorporatedea’s patented polymer
technologies. The Company has two proprietarymelytechnology platforms: 1) Intelimer® polymeasd 2) Hyaluronan (“HA”")
biopolymers. The Company’s polymer technologiém@with its customer relationships and trade rgraee the foundation, and a key
differentiating advantage, upon which Landec hak ks business.

Landec has three core businesses — Food Produttiediegy, Food Export and HA-based Biomaterialeeheof which is described
below.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Apio, operates our ¢f&woducts Technology business, combining Landaeoprietary food
packaging technology with the capabilities of @énational food supplier and value-added producegssor. In Apio’s value-added
operations, produce is processed by trimming, waghmixing, and packaging into bags and traysiti@irporate Landec’s Breathe W8y
membrane technology. The BreatheWay membraneaseseshelf life and reduces shrink (waste) foileessand, for certain products,
eliminates the need for ice during the distributbyale and helps to ensure that consumers recedgh produce by the time the product m:
its way through the supply chain. Apio also licesnthe BreatheWay technology to ChiquBaands International, Inc. (“Chiquita”) for
packaging and distribution of bananas and avocaddso Windset Farms for packaging of greenhousegicucumbers, peppers and
tomatoes.

Apio also operates the Food Export business thrisgbal Ex Trading Company (“Cal-Ex”). The Expbrsiness purchases and
sells whole fruit and vegetable products to prechamily Asian markets.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Lifecore, operates H&-based Biomaterials business and is principalplved in the development
and manufacture of products utilizing hyaluronanaturally occurring polysaccharide that is widdistributed in the extracellular matrix of
connective tissues in both animals and humansecbik’s products are primarily sold to three mddiegments: (1) Ophthalmic, (2)
Orthopedic and (3) Veterinary. Lifecore also siggphyaluronan to customers pursuing other medigplications, such as aesthetic surgery,
medical device coatings, tissue engineering andhpheeuticals. Lifecore leverages its fermentaimtess to manufacture premium,
pharmaceutical-grade hyaluronan, and its asefitiogficapabilities to deliver HA finished goodsite customers. Lifecore also manufactures
and sells its own HA-based finished goods on agpeivabel basis through third parties. Lifecoreesognized in the medical segments as a
premium supplier of HA. Its name recognition alfohifecore to acquire new customers and sell neslysts with a modest marketing and
sales investment.

Landec also develops proprietary polymer technelgind applies them in a wide range of applicatioclading seed coatings and
treatments, temperature indicators, controlledasgesystems, drug delivery, pressure sensitivesadiseand personal care products. These
applications are commercialized through partnesshiiph third parties resulting in licensing and atty revenues. For example, Air Products
and Chemicals, Inc. (“Air Products”) has an exaladicense to our Intelimer polymers for persorakcgproducts and Nitta Corporation
(“Nitta”) licenses Landec’s proprietary pressurasive adhesives for use in the manufacture aftedaic components by their customers.
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Landec was incorporated on October 31, 1986. Wepteted our initial public offering in 1996 and dbommon Stock is listed on
The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbdNRC.” Our principal executive offices are locatdB&03 Haven Avenue, Menlo
Park, California 94025 and our telephone numb&?3¢) 306-1650.
Description of Core Business

Landec participates in three core business segméwizd Products Technology, Food Export and Hyedan-based Biomaterials.

Landec Corporation

Proprietary Polymer Science Technology

| 1

Food Products

. Food Export HA-basad Biomalenals
.I!L_"'ll_'l_'_].‘l

Food Products Technology Business

The Company began marketing its proprietary Intetiibased BreatheWay® membranes in 1996 for udeifrésh-cut produce
packaging market, historically one of the fastest\gng segments in the produce industry. Landpiprietary BreatheWaypackaging
technology when combined with fresh-cut or wholedurce results in packaged produce with increaseld Iléfie and reduced shrink (waste)
without the need for ice during the distributiortley The resulting products are referred to asuradded” products. During the fiscal year
ended May 27, 2012, Apio shipped nearly sixteetignilcartons of produce to leading supermarketilextg wholesalers, foodservice
suppliers and club stores throughout the UniteteStand internationally, primarily in Canada.

There are four major distinguishing characteristitApio that provide competitive advantages in fle®d Products Technology
market:

Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketeselfe of fresh-cut and whole value-added produteés
focused on selling products under its Eat Smart@regnLine brands and private label brands fdréish-cut and whole valuaddec
products. As retail grocery chains, club storas faod service operators consolidate, Apio is yweBitioned as a single source of a
broad range of products.

Reduced Farming Risks: Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking owstap of farmland, and instead, contracts with gnaver
produce and selectively enters into joint ventuvétk growers for produce. The year-round sour@hgroduce is a key component
to the fresh-cut and whole value-added processiisgqbss.

Lower Cost Structure: Apio has strategically invested in the rapidly gimogvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. 'A{i86,000
square foot value-added processing plant in GupdaldA, is automated with state-of-the-art vegetaobcessing equipment. A
large majority of Apio’s value-added products ztliApio’s proprietary BreatheWay packagingchnology. Apio’s strategy is to
operate one large central processing facility ia ofthe lowest cost growing regions in Califorrifee Santa Maria Valley, for the
majority of its non-green bean vegetable busingss,its packaging technology for nationwide dejinamd use its East Coast
facilities acquired with the acquisition of Greenkifor green bean processing and to meet the taxtlelivery’needs of custome
for its historical value-added, fresh-cut products.
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Expanded Product Line Using TechnologyApio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagiteghnology, is introducing new value-
added products each year. These new productmgferange from various sizes of fresh-cut baggedymts, to vegetable trays, to
whole produce, to vegetable salads and snack pdaksng the last twelve months, Apio, excluding froducts acquired in the
acquisition of GreenLine, has introduced five neaduicts.

Apio established its Apio Packaging division in 8G0 advance the sales of BreatheWay packagingodatyy for shelflife sensitive
vegetables and fruit. The Company’s specialty pgicigafor case liner products extends the shelfdifeertain produce commaodities up to
50%. This shelf life extension can enable thaazatiion of alternative distribution strategies &irgefficiencies or reach new markets while
maintaining product quality to the end customer.

Apio Packaging'’s first program has concentratedh@manas and was formally consummated when Apigezhtato an agreement to
supply Chiquita with its proprietary banana packggechnology. This global agreement applies ¢orifpening, conservation and shelf-life
extension of bananas.

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wimllged subsidiary of
Monsanto Company (“Monsanto”), to develop noveldeali and cauliflower products for the exclusivéeday Apio in the North American
market. These novel products are packaged in laasgeoprietary BreatheWay packaging and a commeseaiak agreement was entered
on June 12, 2012 and sales started in the Fabt2 2nder Monsanto’s Beneforte® brand to retaitgrg and Club store chains.

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieemgreement with Windset for Windset to utilize dao's proprietary breathable
packaging to extend the shelf life of greenhoussvgrcucumbers, peppers and tomatoes. Commertésl sBWindset cucumbers and
peppers in BreatheWay packaging are projecteddmbie fiscal year 2013.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharelfage agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) wittdgéin Pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 sereterped shares for $15 million and 201 commonesh&or $201 (the “Purchased
Shares”). The Company’s common shares represehtl&interest in Windset. The non-voting seni@f@mred shares yield a cash dividend
of 7.5% annually. The dividend is payable withindi#ys of each anniversary of the execution of tnelitase Agreement. The Purchase
Agreement includes a put and call option, which lsarexercised on the sixth anniversary of the Raget\greement whereby Apio can
exercise the put to sell its Purchased Shares mul¥®t, or Windset can exercise the call to purcttes®urchased Shares from Apio, in either
case, at a price equal to 20.1% of the appreciatitime fair market value of Windset from the datéhe Company’s investment through the
put/call date, plus the purchase price of the Pagetli SharesUnder the terms of the arrangement with WindsetGbmpany is entitled to
designate one of five members on the Board of Borswf Windset.

Food Export Business

Food Export revenues consist of revenues genefiatedthe purchase and sale of primarily whole corditydruit and vegetable
products primarily to Asia through Apio’s exportnepany, Cal-Ex. The Food Export business is a leliydsisiness that realizes a margin on
average in the 5-8% range.
Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business

Our HA-based Biomaterials business, operated thrawg Lifecore subsidiary, was acquired by Landedpril 30, 2010.

Lifecore uses its fermentation process and asépticulation and filling expertise to be a leadethe development of HA-based
products for multiple applications and to take adsge of non-HA device and drug opportunities whaterage its expertise in
manufacturing and aseptic syringe filling capaleitit Elements of Lifecore’s strategy include thkéofving:

° Establish strategic relationships with market leesde Lifecore will continue to develop applications fwroducts with
partners who have strong marketing, sales andliisitn capabilities to end-user markets. Throilglstrong reputation and history of

providing premium HA products, Lifecore has beeledb establish long-term relationships with mardkeiding companies such as Alcon,
Inc. (Alcon) and others in ophthalmology, and Mueskeletal Transplant Foundation (MTF) and Nova#i@ in orthopedics.
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° Expand medical applications for HADue to the growing knowledge of the unique cbeemdstics of HA and the role it
plays in normal physiology, Lifecore continuesdertify and pursue further uses for HA in other roaldapplications, such as wound care,
aesthetic surgery, adhesion prevention, drug dglivievice coatings and pharmaceuticals. FurthpliGgiions may involve expanding
process development activity and/or additionalrigieg of technology.

° License HA technology from third parties$n 2007, Lifecore entered into a world-wide exclgslicense and development
agreement with The Cleveland Clinic Foundationd¢eadop and commercialize Corgel™ Biohydrogel ugatgnted HA-based cross-linking
technology that can be used for products in agsthairthopedics, ophthalmology and other medieddi$. Lifecore has not yet developed
any commercial products for this technology.

° Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue caut aseptic filling and fermentation opportunitiésfecore continues to
evaluate providing contract services for opporigsithat are suited for the capital and facilityastment related to aseptic filling equipment,
fermentation and purification.

° Maintain flexibility in product development and plyprelationships. Lifecore’s vertically integrated development and
manufacturing capabilities allow it to establishaaiety of relationships with global corporate pars. Lifecore’s role in these relationships
extends from supplying HA raw materials to manufaog of aseptically-packaged, finished steriledarcts to developing and manufacturing
its own proprietary products.

Other Non-Core Businesses
Seeds Business — Intellicoat Seed Coatings

Landec's Intellicoat seed coating applicationsdasgned to control seed germination timing, inseeerop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. These coatings areeotly available on male inbred corn used for samediuction. In fiscal year 2000,
Landec Ag launched Pollinator Pl@scoatings, which is a coating application used lBdssompanies as a method for spreading pollinadi
increase yields and reduce risk in the productidmybrid seed corn. In 2012, Pollinator Plus wasdiby eight seed companies on more than
20% of the seed corn production acres in the Ul8s business was sold to INCOTEC Holding North Aice Inc. (“INCOTEC”) on June
24, 2012 (see Note 3 to the Consolidated Finaistatements).

Nor-Seed Business

The Company believes its technology has commepoigntial in a wide range of industrial, consumad enedical applications
beyond those identified in our other segments. eéxample, our core patented technology, Intelimatenials, can be used to trigger releas
catalysts, insecticides or fragrances just by cimgntine temperature of the Intelimer materialsooadtivate adhesives through controlled
temperature change. In order to exploit these dppities, we have entered into and will selectvehter into licensing and collaborative
corporate agreements for product development awdigtibution in certain fields. However, giveretmfrequency and unpredictability of
when the Company may enter into any such licensirtjresearch and development arrangements, theagrigpunable to disclose its
financial expectations in advance of entering sBuoh arrangements.

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development strategyf®s on coatings, catalysts, resins, additivesdhdsives in the polymer
materials market. During the product developméages, the Company identifies corporate partnessipport the ongoing development and
testing of these products, with the ultimate gddicensing the applications at the appropriateetim
Intelimer Latent Catalyst Polymer Syste

Landec has developed latent catalysts useful ienehg pot-life, extending shelf life, reducing weaand improving thermoset cure
methods. Some of these latent catalysts are dlyrfsging distributed by Akzo-Nobel Chemicals Bpursuant to our licensing agreement

with Air Products. The rights to develop and &elhdec’s latent catalysts and personal care teolgiesd were licensed to Air Products in
March 2006.
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Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicatiogasesfy is focused on supplying Intelimer materialsdustry leaders for use in
lotions and creams, as well as color cosmeticstitiks and hair care. The Company's partner, Aid@cts, is currently shipping products to
L'Oreal, Mentholatum, Louis Widmer, Aris Cosmetisd other companies for use in lotions and crearh& rights to develop and sell
Landec’s polymers for personal care products wieem$ed to Air Products in March 2006 along with ldtent catalyst rights. The
Company’s Intelimer polymers are currently in 088rpersonal care products worldwide.

Results of Operations

Revenuegin thousands):

Three Three
months months Nine months Nine months
ended ended ended ended
2/24/13 2/26/12 Change 2/24/13 2/26/12 Change
Apio Value Added $ 86,707 $ 56,45¢ 54% $ 233,93. $ 146,51. 60%
Apio Export 13,38: 12,38¢ 8% 66,85« 57,97 15%
Total Apio 100,08 68,84« 45% 300,78" 204,48:- 47%
Lifecore 17,33: 11,06¢ 57% 33,04 27,42 20%
Corporate 44¢ 154 191% 767 3,02¢ (75%)
Total Revenues $ 11786 % 80,06 47% $ 334,59! $ 234,93! 42%

Apio Value Added

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of revenuesrgézd from the sale of specialty packaged freslaed whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgeal in our proprietary packaging and sold udgego’s Eat Smart and GreenLine
brands and various private labels. In additiotyeadded revenues include the revenues generatedApio Cooling, LP, a vegetable
cooling operation in which Apio is the general partwith a 60% ownership position and from the sélBreatheWay packaging to license
partners.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenues foththee and nine months ended February 24, 2013 @@udo the same periods of
last year was primarily due to the following factofl) $26.0 million and $70.3 million, respectiyedf revenues from GreenLine which was
acquired on April 23, 2012 and (2) a 5% and 14%peetively, increase in unit volume sales to existion-green bean customers resulting
primarily from expanded product offerings, gainedditional distribution locations and growth in finesh-cut vegetable category. These
increases in revenue were partially offset by pobdoix changes in retail grocery chains to lowecegu products from higher priced produt

Apio Export

Apio export revenues consist of revenues genefadetthe purchase and sale of primarily whole corditydfruit and vegetable
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revengaas to the sale price to third parties becautak@s title to the product while in transit.

The increase in revenues in Apio’s export busifiesthe three and nine months ended February 243 26mpared to the same

periods last year was due to a 6% and 4%, respégtincrease in unit volume sales due to a greatlerme of fruit and vegetables being
available to export coupled with favorable pricfiog export products during the first half of fisgadar 2013.
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Lifecore

Lifecore principally generates revenue throughgale of products containing HA. Lifecore primgasklls products to customers in
three medical areas: (1) Ophthalmic, which repreesbapproximately 65% of Lifecore’s revenues icdisyear 2012, (2) Orthopedic, which
represented approximately 20% of Lifecore’s reverindiscal year 2012 and (3) Veterinary/Other.

The increase in Lifecore’s revenues for the threatim ended February 24, 2013 compared to the parma last year was due to
certain shipments of HA for Ophthalmic applicatiowfich have historically been shipped during theomd quarter, such as during the
second quarter of last year, being delayed angsHiduring the third quarter this fiscal year.

The increase in Lifecore’s revenues for the nin@tm® ended February 24, 2013 compared to the sanmdast year was due to
increased sales of HA and aseptically filled sygipgoducts to existing customers and sales of medugts recently approved by the FDA to
existing Ophthalmic customers.

Corporate

Corporate revenues are generated from the licergjrepments with Air Products, Nitta and INCOTEC.

The increase in Corporate revenues for the threghm@nded February 24, 2013 compared to the sarmmmf last year was
primarily due to revenue from the new Nitta reshand development agreement entered into at tharoag of the third quarter of fiscal
year 2013

The decrease in Corporate revenues for the ninghm@mded February 24, 2013 compared to the sarivel pé last year was due to
the termination of the Monsanto Agreement at thit @frthe second quarter of fiscal year 2012. Thenfany recognized $2.7 million in
license fees from the Monsanto Agreement durinditeenine months of fiscal year 2012. The Morisditense fees were partially offset by

research and development revenues from Nitta.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Three Three
months months Nine months Nine months
ended ended ended ended
2/24/13 2/26/12 Change 2/24/13 2/26/12 Change
Apio Value Added $ 5,84¢ $ 5,47¢ 7% $ 28,89: $ 16,06¢ 80%
Apio Export 1,031 917 12% 4,407 3,73 18%
Total Apio 6,871 6,39¢ 8% 33,29¢ 19,80: 68%
Lifecore 10,24: 6,62¢ 55% 15,72¢ 14,60: 8%
Corporate 38¢ 154 152% 707 3,02¢ (77%)
Total Gross Profit $ 17,50¢ $ 13,17: 33% $ 49,73( $ 37,43 33%

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnad# including product mix, customer mix, manctiaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomerib name a few. Many of these factors inflleencare interrelated with other
factors. The Company includes in cost of salesfalhe costs related to the sale of products aoratance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. These costs include thieohg: raw materials (including produce, casegeds and packaging), direct labor,
overhead (including indirect labor, depreciatiomd #acility related costs) and shipping and shigpielated costs. The following are the
primary reasons for the changes in gross profitferthree and nine months ended February 24, @hpared to the same periods last year
as outlined in the table above.

Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s value-addedetable business for the three months endedi&gh24, 2013 compared to the
same period last year was primarily due to the S#®ase in revenues significantly offset by apprately $3.0 million of unfavorable
produce sourcing and related costs for non-grean peoduce during the quarter as a result of weadhaes in California during the third
quarter of fiscal year 2013 and due to higher clmstgreen beans during the winter months comptordle rest of the year which results in
approximately 7% lower margins for GreenLine prddwiuring the winter months.
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The increase in gross profit for Apio’s value-addedetable business for the nine months ended &sb24, 2013 compared to the
same period last year was primarily due to (1)ab increase in revenues, (2) the addition of highargin GreenLine products, and (3)
favorable produce sourcing during the first six merof fiscal year 2013, which increased margingygroximately 2% ; with the
favorability during the first six months partialbffset by the net impact of produce sourcing duthgthird quarter of fiscal year 2013.

Apio Export

Apio’s export business is a buy/sell business tiygtally realizes a gross margin in the 5-8% rangehe increase in gross profit for
Apio’s export business during the three months dritebruary 24, 2013 compared to the same peribgdas was primarily due to an 8%
increase in revenues. The 8% increase in revemag$ower than the growth in gross profit becaddawmrable product mix changes to
higher margin products which resulted in a highreisg margin during the third quarter of fiscal y@t3 of 7.7% compared to a gross ma
of 7.4% during the third quarter of fiscal year 201

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s export mesis during the nine months ended February 24, @8tpared to the same period
last year was primarily due to a 15% increasewemees. The 15% increase in revenues was lowsrtligagrowth in gross profit because of
favorable product mix changes to higher margin potslduring the first nine months of fiscal yeafl2@vhich resulted in a higher gross
margin during the first nine months of fiscal yea@i.3 of 6.6% compared to a gross margin of 6.4%nduhe first nine months of fiscal year
2012.

Lifecore

The increase in gross profit during the three and months ended February 24, 2013 compared tsaime periods last year was
to a increase in revenues of $6.3 million and $&ilBon, respectively, as a result of certain shents which have historically been shipped
during the second quarter being delayed and nppstiuntil the third quarter and the increasedssafi@roducts, both historical products and
new products, to existing customers while maintajrtiistorical margins on the increased sales.

Corporate

The increase in Corporate gross profit for theghmonths ended February 24, 2013 compared to the pariod last year was due to
the new research and development agreement with Qdrporation which resulted in $275,000 of resieand development revenues and
gross profit during the quarter.

The decrease in Corporate gross profit for the minaths ended February 24, 2013 compared to the panod last year was due to
the termination of the Monsanto Agreement at thee@frthe second quarter of fiscal year 2012. Tierigrly revenues and gross profit for
Corporate from Monsanto had been $1.35 millioncquearter prior to the termination. This decreaskcense fees from Monsanto was
partially offset by gross profit from the new resdaand development agreement with Nitta.

Operating Expensegqin thousands):

Three Three
months months Nine months Nine months
ended ended ended ended
2/24/13 2/26/12 Change 2/24/13 2/26/12 Change
Research and Devel opment:
Apio $ 23€ % 27¢ (1=%) $ 83t $ 792 6%
Lifecore 1,25¢ 1,23 2% 3,62¢ 3,47¢ 4%
Corporate 831 962 (14%) 2,17¢ 2,87¢ (24%)
Total R&D $ 2,32t % 2,47: (6%) $ 6,64z $ 7,14 (7%)
Selling, General and Administrative
and other:
Apio $ 561¢ % 3,72 51% $ 13,43 $ 10,75¢ 25%
Lifecore 1,09: 1,26¢ (14%) 3,48¢ 3,381 3%
Corporate 1,817 1,674 9% 5,41( 5,03: 7%
Total S,G&A $ 8,52/ % 6,66 28% $ 22,33 % 19,17: 16%
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Research and Development

Landec’s research and development consists priynafriproduct development and commercializationatites. Research and
development efforts at Apio are focused on the Camyfs proprietary BreatheWay membranes used fdkggang produce, with recent focus
on extending the shelf-life of sensitive vegetalaled fruit. In the Lifecore business, the reseath development efforts are focused on new
products and applications for HA-based biomateriédsr Corporate, the research and developmentefioe focused on uses for our
proprietary Intelimer polymers outside of food a&hél.

The decrease in research and development expeandée three and nine months ended February 248 e&hpared to the same
periods last year was primarily due to the reseanthdevelopment expenses from Landec Ag in figeat 2012 which was sold in June
2012.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (“S,G&A") exges consist primarily of sales and marketing exgeassociated with Landec’s
product sales and services, business developmpahsas and staff and administrative expensesudedlas a reduction to S,G&A for Apio
is a $3.9 million reversal of the earn-out lialyithich was recorded as a reduction of operatimgases.

The increase in S,G&A expenses for the three maenkded February 24, 2013 compared to the samedgasbyear was primarily
due to: (1) $1.6 million of S,G&A expenses at Gigar which was acquired on April 23, 2012, (2) $3W0 increase in SG&A at Apio,
excluding GreenLine, primarily from the amortizatiof the customer base intangible acquired in tlyisition of GreenLine and (3) a
$143,000 increase at Corporate due to increasediating, tax and legal fees. These increases pagtally offset by a $175,000 decreas:
S,G&A at Lifecore due primarily to lower headcount.

The increase in S,G&A expenses for the nine moatited February 24, 2013 compared to the sameddagbyear was primarily
due to: (1) $4.5 million of S,G&A expenses at Giigar which was acquired on April 23, 2012, (2) al$@illion increase in SG&A at Apio,
excluding GreenLine, due to the amortization oé ¢istomer base intangible acquired in the acéprsitf GreenLine, an increase in salary
and bonus expenses and additional sales and nrayletpenses associated with the increase in resg(8)ea $107,000 increase at Lifecore
due to the timing of the recognition of certain &&Gexpenses within the fiscal year and (4) a $300,hcrease at Corporate due to increased
accounting, tax and legal fees. These increasegaatially offset by a $3.9 million reversal oétharn-out liability.

Other (in thousands):

Three Three
months months Nine months Nine months
ended ended ended ended
2/24/13 2/26/12 Change 2/24/13 2/26/12 Change
Dividend I ncome $ 281 $ 281 — % 844 $ 844 —
Interest Income $ 46 $ 63 (27%) $ 104 % 21¢ (53%)
| nterest Expense $ (487 $ (159 21€% $ (1,526 $ (492) 21(%
Other Income $ 1,047 $ 3,50¢ (70%) $ 6,28t $ 4,59t 37%
Income Taxes $ (2,759 $ (2,920 (6%) $ (8,23¢) $ (6,079 36%
Non contralling Int. $ (3) % (49 (94%) $ (159 ¢ (28¢) (45%)

Dividend Income
Dividend income is derived from the dividends aectwn our $15 million preferred stock investmeriimdset which yields a cash

dividend of 7.5% annually. There was no changdividend income for the three and nine months erddatuary 24, 2013 compared to the
same periods last year.
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Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the three amelmonths ended February 24, 2013 compared tsaime periods last year was
primarily due to lower cash balances reflecting use of cash to buyback shares of the Company’smmnstock during fiscal year 2012 and
to purchase GreenLine.

Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense during the thrdenane months ended February 24, 2013 compartgktsame periods last year
was due to interest on the debt incurred in thaiia@ttpn of GreenLine. This increase was partialtfset by decreases in interest expense at
Lifecore due to paying down its debt by $2.6 millisince the beginning of fiscal year 2012.

Other Income

The decrease in other income for the three momtledFebruary 24, 2013 compared to the same plasbgiear is due to an update
in the valuation of our Windset investment dueh® tteceipt of updated forecasts and changes iaigerssumptions during the Company’s
first fiscal quarter in 2013, whereas last year fiew@casts underlying the valuation were receivatithe valuation was updated during the
third quarter of fiscal year 2012.

The increase in other income for the nine montliedr-ebruary 24, 2013 compared to the same persbgear is due to a $1.7
million increase in the fair market value of ournfset investment.

Income Taxes

The decrease in the income tax expense for the thonths ended February 24, 2013 is due to a 2%a®z in net income before
taxes compared to the same period last year antbduesduction of the effective tax rate for theee months ended February 24, 2013 to
36% from 38% for the same period last year.

The increase in the income tax expense for the mimeths ended February 24, 2013 is due to a 63#éase in net income before
taxes compared to the same period last year. fibetige tax rate for the nine months ended Felyr@4; 2013 was 31% compared to 38%
for the same period last year primarily becauses$8 million reversal of the earn-out liabilityrihg the second quarter of fiscal year 2012
related to the GreenLine acquisition was not suligmcome taxes which resulted in a lower effectax rate for the nine months ended
February 24, 2013.

Non controlling Interest
The non controlling interest consists of the lidifgartners’ equity interest in the net income ofcA@ooling, LP.

The change in the non controlling interest forttiree and nine months ended February 24, 2013 aeehpa the same periods last
year was not significan

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of February 24, 2013, the Company had cash asld equivalents of $9.9 million, a net decreas&l@3 million from $22.2
million at May 27, 2012.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $13.5 million of cash from opegadictivities during the nine months ended Febr@4ry2013 compared to
generating $8.5 million from operating activitiagrithg the nine months ended February 24, 2012e primary sources of cash from
operating activities during the nine months endebr&ary 24, 2013 were from (1) generating $18.2onilof net income, (2) $6.7 million of
depreciation/amortization and stock based compiemsaxpenses and (3) a $4.2 million net increasieferred tax liabilities. The primary
reduction of cash from operating activities wasifr(l) the $6.3 million non-cash increase in the @any’s investment in Windset, (2) a
reversal of the $3.9 million earn-out liability frothe GreenLine acquisition which increased netrime by the same amount but was a non-
cash item and (3) a net increase of $5.5 milliowanking capital, excluding the portion of the degrse in income taxes receivable which is
attributable to the tax benefit from stock-basenhpensation.
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The primary factors which increased working capiading the first nine months of fiscal year 201&reva $5.3 million increase in
receivables primarily due to the timing of receigts\pio and that revenues in February this yeaew.6 million higher than May of last
year and a $2.6 million decrease in accrued ligsliprimarily from paying bonuses earned in figer 2012 during the first quarter of fis
year 2013 and (c) a $3.0 million increase in prégaipenses and other current assets was primalyadan increase in prepaid income te
and prepaid insurance at Corporate. Working chgitereased during the first nine months of figesr 2013 because of a $5.1 million
increase in accounts payable due to the timingagfrents at Apio and from the $1.6 million increasdeferred revenues from the sale of
Landec Ag to INCOTEC in June 2012 and from prodbat has been manufactured at Lifecore and billeédbt yet shipped.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the mmaenths ended February 24, 2013 was $8.3 millionpzoed to $862,000 for the
same period last year. The primary uses of castvesting activities during the nine months enBlebruary 24, 2013 were for the purchase
of $4.5 million of equipment primarily to suppohtet growth of the Apio value-added and Lifecore bhesses, and from the net purchase of
$3.8 million of marketable securities.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the mmenths ended February 24, 2013 was $17.4 millionpaoed to $3.3 million for the
same period last year. The net cash used in fingractivities during the first nine months of fidgear 2013 was primarily due to the $10
million earn out payment from the Lifecore acqudsit $9.7 million of which was recorded as a cogdint liability at the time of the
acquisition and is therefore classified as a fim@mactivity, and $12.1 million of payments on tBempany’s lines of credit and long-term
debt. These uses of cash in financing activitiesevpartially offset by a $2.7 million tax bendfitm stockbased compensation and from ¢
million of cash received from the exercise of stopkions by Company employees.

Capital Expenditures

During the nine months ended February 24, 2013deampurchased equipment to support the growtheoAttio value-added and
Lifecore businesses. These expenditures repezbéimt majority of the $4.5 million of capital exyitures.

Debt

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratistrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”). These IRBs wassumed by Landec in the
acquisition of Lifecore. The IRBs are collateratizoy a bank letter of credit which is secured liiysh mortgage on the Lifecore facility in
Chaska, Minnesota. In addition, Lifecore paysianual remarketing fee equal to 0.125% and an atetter of credit fee of 0.75%.

On April 23, 2012 in connection with the acquigitiof GreenLine, Apio entered into three loan agresisiwith General Electric
Capital Corporation and/or its affiliates (“GE Ciafii), (collectively the “Apio Loan Agreements”):

1) A five-year, $25.0 million asset-based workaapital revolving line of credit, with an intereate of LIBOR plus 2%, with
availability based on the monthly combination o gligible accounts receivable and inventory bataraf Apio and its
subsidiaries. Apio’s revolving line of credit has unused fee of 0.375% per annum. At Februarg@2, Apio had $4.0 million
outstanding under its revolving line of credit.

2) A $12.7 million capital equipment loan whichton@s in seven years payable in monthly principal iaterest payments of $175,356
with interest based on a fixed rate of 4.39% peuam
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3) A $19.1 million real estate loan, $1.2 milliohwhich is due on April 23, 2013 and the remainai@turing in ten years. The real
estate loan has a fifteen year amortization patigalin monthly principal and interest payments bf8962 with interest based on a
fixed rate of 4.02% per annum. The principal bataremaining at the end of the ten year term ésidwne lump sum on May 1,
2022.

The obligations of Apio and its subsidiaries agsirom the Apio Loan Agreements are secured bysl@mall of the property of Ap
and its subsidiaries. The Apio Loan Agreementgaiarcustomary events of default under which ollayes could be accelerated or
increased. Landec is guaranteeing all obligataimspio and its subsidiaries to GE Capital under itans described in clauses (2) and (3)
above and has pledged its equity interest in Apioalateral under the loan described in (1) aboMee Apio Loan Agreements contain
customary covenants, such as limitations on thiyate (1) incur indebtedness or grant liens ogaiéve pledges on Apio’s assets; (2) make
loans or other investments; (3) pay dividends purehase stock or other securities; (4) sell as@&t®ngage in mergers; (6) enter into sale
and leaseback transactions; (7) adopt certain hexafs; and (8) make changes in Apio’s corposaitecture. In addition, Apio must
maintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio.@D*o 1.0. Apio was in compliance with all fingalccovenants as of February 24, 2013.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or ffdiates (“BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

(1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credgréement”) which includes (a) a one-year, $8.0iamlbsset-based working capital
revolving line of credit, with an interest rateldBOR plus 1.85%, with availability based on themtidy combination of Lifecore’s
eligible accounts receivable and inventory balarfaeailability was $6.9 million at February 24, 3)&nd with no unused fee (as of
February 24, 2013, no amounts were outstandingrithddine of credit) and (b) a $12.0 million teloan which matures in four
years due in monthly payments of $250,000 withregepayable monthly based on a variable inteegstof LIBOR plus 2% (th
“Term Loan”).

(2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to whichBNarris caused its affiliate, Bank of Montrealjgsue an irrevocable letter of
credit in the amount of $3.5 million (the “Lettefr@redit”) which is securing the IRBs described a0

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Lodgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntgf Lifecore. The Lifecore
Loan Agreements contain customary covenants, ssiiméations on the ability to (1) incur indebtexss or grant liens or negative pledge:
Lifecore’s assets; (2) make loans or other inveatsd3) pay dividends or repurchase stock or adbeurities; (4) sell assets; (5) engage in
mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaseback transac(7) adopt certain benefit plans; and (8) metk@nges in Lifecore’s corporate
structure. In addition, under the Credit Agreemeifecore must maintain (a) a minimum fixed chaogeerage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a
minimum quick ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of whigtust be satisfied as of the end of each fiscaltguaommencing with the fiscal quarter
ending August 26, 2012 and (b) a minimum tangilgeworth of $29,000,000, measured as of May 28328d as of the end of each fiscal
year thereafter. Lifecore was in compliance withimancial covenants as of February 24, 2C

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formmedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of
Credit (which replaces a letter of credit previgystovided by Wells Fargo) provides liquidity anedit support for the IRBs.

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yaserest rate swap agreement under the credit agreesith Wells Fargo, which
expires on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swag designated as a cash flow hedge of futureeistt@ayments of LIBOR and had a notic
amount of $20 million. As a result of the intereste swap transaction, the Company fixed for afigar period the interest rate at 4.24%
subject to market based interest rate risk on $#lmof borrowings under the credit agreementhwiVells Fargo. The Company’s
obligations under the interest rate swap transactfoto the scheduled payments were guaranteeseanded on the same basis as is its
obligations under the credit agreement with Wellsge at the time the agreement was consummatedmehtioned in Note 11, upon
entering into the new Term Loan with BMO Harrise tBompany used the proceeds from that loan to fidlgeoWells Fargo credit
facility. The swap with Wells Fargo was not teratied upon the extinguishment of the debt with Wiellsgo. As a result of extinguishing
the debt with Wells Fargo as of May 23, 2012, thaswas no longer an effective hedge and therefioecfair value of the swap at the time
the debt was extinguished of $347,000 was revedrset other comprehensive income and recorded iar@Rkpense during fiscal year
2012. The fair value of the swap arrangement &®ebfuary 24, 2013 and May 27, 2012 was $203,0605847,000, respectively, and is
included in other accrued liabilities in the accamying balance sheet. The change in the fair vafitiee swap of $45,000 and $144,000,
respectively, for the three and nine months enddxfiary 24, 2013 is recorded in other income ireit@mpanying Consolidated Statements
of Comprehensive Income.
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Landec believes that its cash from operations,gleith existing cash, cash equivalents and marketdxurities will be sufficient 1

finance its operational and capital requirementsafdeast the next twelve months.

Iltem 3.

Iltem 4.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There have been no material changes to the Congparayket risk during the first nine months of fispear 2013.
Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Internal and Disclosure Controls &ndcedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Qurteeport on Form 10-Q (the Evaluation Date), weied out an evaluation, under
the supervision and with the participation of owamagement, including our Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer,
regarding the effectiveness of the design and ¢iperaf our disclosure controls and proceduresiéiged in Rule 13a-15(e)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 8#18s amended). Based upon that evaluation, oef Ekecutive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded, as of thd ef the period covered by this Quarterly Repibidf our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as a result of thatiied material weakness in internal control ofieancial reporting, the nature of
which is summarized below.

Notwithstanding the material weakness describedvihelve have performed additional analyses and gphecedures to enal
management to conclude that our condensed contalidenancial statements included in this reportevgrepared in accordar
with accounting principles generally accepted ie thnited States. Based in part on these additieffalts, our Chief Executi\
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have includdwbir certifications as exhibits to this Form 10-Q.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combamatf deficiencies, in internal control over fin&aeporting, such that there i
reasonable possibility that a material misstatenoéihe Companys annual or interim financial statements will netfirevented «
detected on a timely basis.

The Company did not have effective controls to mfe\assurance as to the appropriate applicati@easunting methods with
respect to determining the fair value of its inmesit in a non-public company for which it has ededhe fair value option. The
company misapplied the guidance under FASB ASC-824ir Value Measurement, by incorrectly calculgtihe fair value of the
investment.

To remediate the material weakness described abondeenhance our internal control over financialorépg, management h
developed and initiated a plan to implement thiofaihg changes:

« Obtain an independent appraisal at least annuatlydnen there has been a significant change imgstsens of the Company’s
investment(s) in non-public company(ies) — fairmeaincluding a discounted net present value ofrthestment as of the quarter
being reported.

« Management will validate the significant assumpdiofhthe independent appraiser's model and veniy the discounted net
present value as of the quarter being reportegbisanable.

« At quarter ends, where an independent appraisetehis not obtained, management will validate apdate, as necessary, the

significant assumptions of that independent appragjualified model and calculate a discountedpnesent value as of the
quarter being reported.
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Management believes that these measures will rerteettie material weakness described above. Managédrmkeves these
measures have been fully implemented as of theaddhés report, but subsequent to the period aadday this report. The
Company’s auditors will evaluate the effectivenesthese measures in the fourth quarter of fiseary2013. The Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors and management will aongi to monitor the implementation of these remediehsures and the
effectiveness of our internal controls and procedun an ongoing basis.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

The Company continues to implement our remedigilan for the material weakness in the effectivermégontrols related to determining
fair value of its investment in a non-public compaliscussed in Item 4 above. Based on our progoedate in the implementation of our
remediation plan, we believe we will complete thquired remedial actions for the material weakimesise fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013.
There were no other changes in our internal cowirel financial reporting that occurred during pegiod covered by this Quarterly Repor
Form 10-Q that have materially affected, or aresoeably likely to materially affect, our internardrol over financial reporting. The
additional costs associated with the above remedi#ns are not material.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, the Company is npagy to any legal proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Item 2.

Item 3.

Iltem 4.

Item 5.

Except as set forth below, there have been nofgignt changes to the Company's risk factors whighincluded and described in
the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 27,26ted with the Securities and Exchange CommissiorAugust 8, 2012.

Lapses in disclosure controls and procedures or iethal control over financial reporting could materially and adversely affect
the Company'’s operations, profitability or reputation.

We are committed to maintaining high standardsitg#rnal control over financial reporting and distloe controls and procedures.
Nevertheless, lapses or deficiencies in disclosandrols and procedures or in our internal contkar financial reporting may occur
from time to time. On January 2, 2013, we repothted our audit committee reached a determinatioedtate our previously-filed
interim financial statements for the first fiscalagter of 2013 and that our previously-filed intefinancial statements for the first
fiscal quarter of 2013 should not be relied upor &éo0 reported managementfetermination that a material weakness existedi
internal control over financial reporting at Aug@#&;, 2012. As a result of the material weaknessiagement also concluded that
disclosure controls and procedures were not effeett August 26, 2012.

There can be no assurance that our disclosureot®mind procedures will be effective in preventingnaterial weakness or
significant deficiency in internal control over &incial reporting from occurring in the future. Asiych lapses or deficiencies may
materially and adversely affect our business ardlt® of operations or financial condition, regtdar ability to access the capital
markets, require us to expend resources to cdiredapses or deficiencies, expose us to regulatolggal proceedings, harm our
reputation, or otherwise cause a decline in invastafidence.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securitiesna Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity seesiriti shares repurchased by the Company durirfgstia quarter ended on
February 24, 2013.

Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.

Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

Other Information

None.
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ltem 6. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Title:
31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to sectio? 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 + CFO Certification pursuant to sectio® 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

+ Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causisdRbport to be signed on
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /sl Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Of
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: April 4, 2013
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly reportramm 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterhoredoes not contain any untrue statement of anahfact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financialesteants, and other financial information includedhiis quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
quarterly report;

4, The registrant's other certifying offigard | are responsible for establishing and maimgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirgg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosomols and procedures, or caused such disclosunmteats and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this quarterly report is being prepared

(b) designed such internaltoarover financial reporting, or caused such inggrcontrol over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectivenetthe registrant's disclosure controls and pfoces and presented in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this quarterly report based
on such evaluation, and

(d) disclosed in this quargegport any change in the registrantiternal control over financial reporting thatomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual n¢ploat has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant's other certifying offieerd | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdatanmnmittee of the registrant’'s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

€) all significant deficiemsiand material weaknesses in the design or opermaitinternal control over financial reporting wh
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or nwterial, that involves management or other emm@syeho have a significant role in the registre
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 4, 2013

/s] Gary T. Steel

Gary T. Steelt
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.Z
CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly reportFammm 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterlyoredoes not contain any untrue statement of anaafact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financiakstants, and other financial information includedhis quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
quarterly report;

4. The registrant's other certifying offigard | are responsible for establishing and maiimgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

€) designed such disclosomtols and procedures, or caused such disclosunteats and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this quarterly report is being prepared

(b) designed such internaltoarover financial reporting, or caused such ingcontrol over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles ;

(c) evaluated the effectivenebthe registrant's disclosure controls and pioces and presented in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this quarterly report based
on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this quargaeport any change in the registrarititernal control over financial reporting thatomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual i¢ploat has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regsit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant's other certifying offigard | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiemsiand material weaknesses in the design or opermattinternal control over financial reporting wh
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or nwterial, that involves management or other emm@syeho have a significant role in the registre
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 4, 2013

/s/ Gregory S. Skinne

Gregory S. Skinne
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landearfidration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending February 24,
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Ci@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, GarySleele, Chief Executive Officer and
President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. 8 1350, as adopted pursuant to 8 906 ofahegaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejuerements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeimsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Redairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: April 4, 2013

/sl Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steels

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnishsedlely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanegyOAtt of 2002 (subsections

(a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title UBited States Code) and is not being filed as gfathe Form 10-Q or as
a separate disclosure document.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landergioration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending February 24, 2013 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Gregory S.rdler, Vice President of Finance and
Adminstration and Chief Financial Officer of the@pany, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, agptatl pursuant to § 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejrerements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeimsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Redairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: April 4, 2013

/sl Gregory S. Skinng

Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Accounting Officer

* The foregoing certification is being furnighsolely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbandeyOict of 2002 (subsections
(a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title UBited States Code) and is not being filed as gfathe Form 10-Q or as
a separate disclosure document.



